
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY - APRIL 9, 2007 
 

7:00 PM 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
I. ROLL CALL 
 
 
II.  INVOCATION 
 
 
III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. P.Z. 11-2007 J&T Holdings (612 Cepi): A request for a change of 
zoning from an “M3” Planned Industrial District to a “PC” Planned 
Commercial District for an approximately 0.38 acre tract of land 
located at 612 Cepi Drive south of the intersection of Chesterfield 
Airport Road and Cepi Drive.  

 
The public may speak on this item tonight. There will be no vote 
taken tonight. 

 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
 
A. Approval of March 26, 2007 Planning Commission Minutes 

 
 
VI.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
VII. SITE PLANS, BUILDING ELEVATIONS AND SIGNS 
  

A. Arthur Bierbrauer House (16630 Chesterfield Airport Road) 
Amended Site Development Plan: An Amended Site Development 
Plan and request for freestanding business sign for a 0.21 acre 
parcel zoned “PC” Planned Commercial District, with Landmark and 
Preservation Area (LPA) located on the south side of Chesterfield 
Airport Road and east of Baxter Road.  

 
The Planning Commission may vote on this item tonight. 



Planning Commission Agenda 

April 9, 2007 

2 

 
B. Edward Schmidt House (16626 Chesterfield Airport Road) 

Amended Site Development Plan: An Amended Site Development 
Plan for a 0.22 acre parcel zoned “PC” Planned Commercial District, 
with Landmark and Preservation Area (LPA) located on the south 
side of Chesterfield Airport Road and east of Baxter Road.  
 
The Planning Commission may vote on this item tonight. 

 
 
VIII. OLD BUSINESS  
 

A. P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride 
Development): A request for a change of zoning from a “R-3” 
Residence District to a “PC” Planned Commercial District for a 1.1 
acre tract of land located at 15310 Conway Road, at the southwest 
corner of Chesterfield Parkway and Conway Road.   

 
The Planning Commission may vote on this item tonight. 

 
 
B. P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center: A request for a change of 

zoning from an “M3” Planned Industrial District to a “PC” Planned 
Commercial District for an approximately 2.045 acres of land located 
at 17670 and 17680 Chesterfield Airport Road east of the intersection 
of Chesterfield Airport Road and Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard.  

 
The Planning Commission may vote on this item tonight. 

 
 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Proposed Amendments to the By-Laws of the Planning 
Commission 

 
The Planning Commission may vote on this item tonight. 

 
 
X. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Note: The Planning Commission will consider and act upon the matters listed 

above, and such other matters as may be presented at the meeting and 
determined to be appropriate for discussion at that time. 

 



IV. A.IV. A.IV. A.IV. A.    
 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Planning Commission of the City of Chesterfield will hold Public 

Hearings on April 9, 2007, in the Council Chambers at the City Hall, 690 Chesterfield Parkway West, 

Chesterfield, Missouri 63017. 
 

Said hearings will be as follows: 

 

P.Z. 11-2007 J&T Holdings (612 Cepi): A request for a change of zoning from an “M3” Planned Industrial 

District to a “PC” Planned Commercial District for an approximately 0.38 acre tract of land located at 612 Cepi 

Drive south of the intersection of Chesterfield Airport Road and Cepi Drive. (17V330122) 

 

Permitted Uses: 

(e)  Associate work and storage areas required by a business, firm or service to carry on business operations. 

(x)  Medical and dental offices. 

(z)  Offices or office buildings. 
 

Anyone interested in the proceedings will be given an opportunity to be heard. Copies of the request are 

available for review in the Department of Planning at the Chesterfield City Hall, 690 Chesterfield Parkway 

West during weekdays between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.  If you should need additional 

information about this project, please contact Ms. Jennifer Yackley, Project Planner, by telephone at 636-537-

4743 or by email at jyackley@chesterfield.mo.us. 
 

 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

Maurice L. Hirsch, Jr., Chair 

Chesterfield Planning Commission 

 



 
 

 

Description of Property 

 

Lot 5A of Resubdivision of Lot 5 of the Amended Plat of Chesterfield Executive Park according 

to the Plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 231 Page 59 of the St. Louis County Records. 







V. A.V. A.V. A.V. A.    
PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 
AT CHESTERFIELD CITY HALL 

MARCH 26, 2007 
 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
I. PRESENT      ABSENT 
 
Mr. David Asmus      
Mr. David Banks       
Mr. Fred Broemmer       
Ms. Wendy Geckeler   
Dr. Lynn O’Connor       
Ms. Lu Perantoni 
Mr. Gene Schenberg      
Ms. Victoria Sherman 
Chairman Maurice L. Hirsch, Jr. 
 
City Attorney Rob Heggie 
Mr. Michael Herring, City Administrator 
Mr. Mike Geisel, Acting Director of Planning 
Ms. Annissa McCaskill-Clay, Assistant Director of Planning 
Ms. Aimee Nassif, Senior Planner 
Mr. Charles Campo, Project Planner 
Ms. Mary Ann Madden, Planning Assistant 
 
 
II.  INVOCATION: Commissioner Perantoni 
 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – All 
 
Chair Hirsch acknowledged the attendance of Councilmember Jane Durrell, 
Ward I; Councilmember Bruce Geiger, Ward II; Councilmember Connie Fults, 
Ward IV; and City Administrator Mike Herring. 
 
 
IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Commissioner Asmus read the “Opening 

Comments” for the Public Hearings. 



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

2 

 
A. P.Z. 09-2007 City of Chesterfield (Beckemeier Property):  A 

request for a change of zoning from “NU” Non-Urban District to “PS” 
Park and Scenic for two (2) parcels located on the north side of Olive 
Boulevard, directly west of the Mansions at Spyglass Summit 
Subdivision. Total area to be rezoned: 48.748 acres 14401 and 
14415 Olive Boulevard (16R220194 and 16R220206) 

 
Project Planner Charles Campo gave a PowerPoint presentation showing 
photographs of the site and surrounding area. Mr. Campo stated the following: 

• In 1997, Minna Waldmann donated the subject tract of land to the Missouri 
Department of Conservation. The tract is currently known as the August 
G. Beckemeier Conservation Area.   

• Current zoning for the site is “NU” Non-Urban. The request is to zone the 
property to “PS” Park & Scenic.  

• There are no current plans for development for the site. 
• The purpose of the proposed change in zoning is to preserve the site as 

open space for the residents of Missouri and the City of Chesterfield.   
• The Missouri Department of Conservation has been informed of the 

proposed change in zoning and has issued no objection.  
• The Comprehensive Plan shows the site to be bordered on all sides by 

residential, except for the northwest corner which is shown as agriculture/ 
flood plain/conservation. 

• The “PS” Park and Scenic District is a straight zoning district.   
• No preliminary plan is required when rezoning to a straight zoning district. 
• This petition is also included on the agenda under “VIII. A. Old Business” 

so that the Commission may vote on it tonight.   
 
SPEAKERS IN FAVOR:  None 
 
SPEAKERS IN OPPOSITION:  None 
 
SPEAKERS – NEUTRAL: 
1.  Mr. Tad Fryer, 14335 Olive Boulevard, Chesterfield, MO stated the following: 

• He and his wife own the property between Spy Glass Summit and the 
Beckemeier property. The subject property on the east abuts their 
property and comes right up to their driveway. 

• He asked if they would be advised in advance of any plans for the 
property that would come near their residence. City Attorney Heggie 
replied that the Conservation Commission has control of the parcel and 
they are allowed to develop the property within the restrictions of the 
Parking and Scenic  Zoning. They are not required to come forward to the 
City with any particular plans. It is his understanding that there are plans 
to do limited improvements to the property – such as a walking trail.  

• Speaker noted that the subject property has a meadow, which abuts their 
property. They have been maintaining this meadow since 1985 and he 



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

3 

asked if the Conservation Commission would be responsible for 
maintaining it and mowing it on a regular basis.  City Attorney Heggie felt 
the Conservation Commission would maintain the site. If a problem arises, 
Speaker was advised to contact the City’s Parks and Recreation 
Department. 

• Speaker stated that there presently is no access to the property. There is 
an electric company easement that goes over the land, but no road goes 
to it other than the Speaker’s driveway.   

 
City Attorney Heggie indicated that the City would provide Mr. Fryer with the 
name of a contact person from the Conservation Commission to address his 
concerns. 
 
REBUTTAL:  None 
 
ISSUES:  None 
 

 
B. P.Z. 14-2007a Wilson Bluffs (SMS Group, L.L.C.):  A request for a 

change of zoning from “NU” Non-Urban District to “E-Half Acre” 
Estate District for a 3.28 acre tract of land located on the west side of 
Wilson road, directly north of Wilson Manors II Subdivision.   

and 
C. P.Z. 14-2007b Wilson Bluffs (SMS Group, L.L.C.):  A request for a 

change of zoning from “NU” Non-Urban to “LLR” Large Lot 
Residential for a 3.0 acre tract of land located on the west side of 
Wilson Road, directly north of Wilson Manors II Subdivision.  

 

Chair Hirsch announced that P.Z. 14-2007b has been withdrawn by the 
Petitioner. The Commission will only be reviewing P.Z. 14-2007a at this time. 
 
Ms. Annissa McCaskill-Clay, Assistant Director of Planning, gave a PowerPoint 
presentation showing photographs of the site and surrounding area.  
Ms. McCaskill-Clay stated the following: 

•••• The petition for zoning from “NU” to “LLR” for the three-acre portion of the 
site has been withdrawn by the Petitioner. 

•••• The site was posted for Public Hearing on March 9, 2007. 
•••• The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject area as “Single-Family 

Residential”. There are no recommendations for density in this area.  
•••• The Petitioner is proposing two lots on 3.28 acres.  
•••• There are setback requirements for the E-Districts, as well as buffering 

requirements as outlined in the Tree Manual.  
•••• There will be a requirement of dedication of land for Wilson Road 

improvements. 
•••• When necessary, the Petitioner will have to provide access to the rear 

portion of the property. 



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

4 

 
PETITIONER’S PRESENTATION: 
1.  Mr. Sean Sortor, 15543 Country Ridge Drive, Chesterfield, MO stated the 

following: 
• He is proposing two home sites on the 3.28 acre parcel. One will have an 

approximately 60’ setback from Wilson Road and a 30’ setback from the 
north side of the property. 

• His personal residence will be built in the center of the property. 
• He was advised by the Planning Staff to apply for E-One-Half Acre zoning. 

This zoning was necessary due to the required setbacks and buffers. 
• Speaker noted that some of the surrounding properties have half-acre lots. 
 

SPEAKERS IN FAVOR:  None  
 
SPEAKERS IN OPPOSITION:  
1.  Mr. Nelson Wainwright, 39 Chesterfield Lakes Road, Chesterfield, MO stated 

the following: 
• He is representing Chesterfield Lakes as a former Trustee and current 

member of the subdivision’s Lake Committee. 
• His home is on the lake directly downstream from the subject property, 

which drains directly into the lake. 
• The Chesterfield Lakes Subdivision experienced problems with its lakes 

when the Wilson Manor development was built. At that time, the area was 
under St. Louis County. 

• A bond was posted with the County for remedial work for any damage to 
the lakes from the construction activities of Wilson Manors. During 
development, the lakes were contaminated with siltation because the 
water was not properly restrained. Soundings of the lake were taken 
before and after construction of Wilson Manors, which showed that an 
average of over 2’ of silt was deposited into the two lakes. When the 
Subdivision called in the bond, the Developer felt they had no 
responsibility since the bond was filed with the County, and now the 
property belonged to Chesterfield. The matter was finally settled out of 
court for far less than the damages incurred. 

• They ask that the current Petitioner be required to post a bond in the 
amount of at least $1 million for any possible damage to their lakes. 

 
Responding to questions from the Commission, Mr. Wainwright stated the 
following: 

• Regarding whether the siltation was removed from the lakes:  The 
settlement money was used for repairs to the upstream areas and to 
restore the original shoreline. They were not enough funds available from 
the settlement to remove the silt from the rest of the lakes. As a result, the 
lakes are, on average, two feet shallower than they were before the 
Wilson Manors construction began. 



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

5 

• Regarding the cost to repair the lakes:  In the mid-1990’s, the estimate 
to repair the lakes was $500,000 per lake. He estimates that repairs would 
currently cost approximately $700,000 per lake. 

 
2. Mr. William Tandy, 1661 Wilson Avenue, Chesterfield, MO stated the 

following: 
• His property is on a body of water that is immediately adjacent to the 

subject property, which will be impacted if the rezoning is approved. 
• He questioned whether the two residences to be constructed will be 

detached or attached housing. Chair Hirsch stated that, if the request is 
granted, the Petitioner would be limited to two detached homes. 

• He expressed concern about the request for One-Half Acre zoning and 
setting a precedent for One-Half Acre zoning in this area. 

• Many of the properties in the area are larger than one-half acre. He and 
other residents bought property in the area based on the current zoning 
and they have concerns that their decision to buy in this area will be 
impacted by the subject petition. 

• He questioned as to how close the two homes would be to each other. 
• He questioned as to what would happen to the property that was 

withdrawn from the petition. 
 
3. Ms. Marilyn Chandler, 1657 Wilson Avenue, Chesterfield, MO stated the 

following: 
• She expressed concern that if One-Half Acre zoning is approved for the 

subject site, it will set a precedent for other property in the area, where 
density may be higher than the proposed petition. 

 
4.  Ms. Donna Thume, 1812 Aston Way, Chesterfield, MO stated the following: 

• She is a resident of Wilson Manors subdivision. 
• She expressed concern about the One-Half Acre zoning request and 

setting a precedent for such zoning in the area. 
• She suggested that a variance be granted on the north side that would 

allow One-Acre zoning for the site. 
 
5.  Mr. Evan Ballman, 1806 Aston Way, Chesterfield, MO stated the following: 

• He expressed concern about One-Half Acre zoning setting a precedent for 
the area. 

• He noted that the site is extremely rugged. He feels that there should be a 
responsibility to the land, the residents, and the community with respect to 
developing land that is extremely rugged. 

• He pointed out that, at the corner of Wilson Road and Wild Horse Creek 
Road, issues have risen with the development of the site because of its 
rugged topography.  

• He would like the Planning Commission to review the difficulties involved 
in developing the subject site taking into consideration its rugged terrain. 
He wants to make the sure the land is developed responsibly. 



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

6 

 
SPEAKERS – NEUTRAL: 
1.  Ms. Margaret Schatz, 1805 Newburyport Road, Chesterfield, MO stated the 

following: 
• She lives in the Chesterfield Meadows subdivision, which is directly across 

the street from the subject site. 
• She noted that the site is rugged and is an extremely narrow piece of land. 
• She feels that the integrity of the land should be kept intact with the older 

trees. 
• She questioned where the road would be put in for access to the two 

proposed houses. 
• She questioned as to the plans for the property that was withdrawn from 

the petition. 
 

REBUTTAL: 
1.  Mr. Sean Sortor stated the following: 

• He would agree to zoning the property E-One Acre if it could be done in 
an easy and timely manner. 

• Regarding the topography of the site, they have it figured out with respect 
to building the two homes. 

• He will be holding the remaining three acres for his personal investment at 
this time. 

• He feels that most of the concerns expressed dealt with residents’ fear of 
“losing free privacy”. He is developing the property to have some of the 
same privacy – he does not intend to level the whole site to make it a big 
field. 

 
Responding to questions from the Commission, Mr. Sortor stated the following: 

• Regarding why he is asking for E-One-Half Acre vs. One-Acre or LLR 
zoning: A large setback (approximately 40-60’) is required from Wilson 
Road; another setback (approximately 20-30’) is required due to the “NU” 
zoning to the north of the site. The build-able lot size is reduced because 
of the required setbacks, which does not allow them to meet One-Acre 
zoning requirements without a variance.  

 
Commissioner Broemmer expressed concern that the E-One-Half Acre zoning 
could allow six homes on the subject site. Chair Hirsch stated that the site-
specific ordinance limits the number of homes on the property.  

 
Mr. Geisel, Acting Director of Planning, pointed out that, in the E-District, the 
buffers and easements are not allowed to be counted towards the minimum lot 
size. The yield is reduced by the required setbacks, buffers, and easements.  

 
Commissioner Perantoni wanted language included in the Attachment A to insure 
that access is provided to the property to the rear of the site. Chair Hirsch stated 



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

7 

that language will have to be included in the Attachment A because access has 
to be established to property that is landlocked. 
 
Ms. McCaskill-Clay stated that the Tree Manual has requirements for buffering 
based on the zoning in the area – such as “Residential” against “Residential”.   
As an example, if the back property of three acres were zoned E-One Acre, 
buffering would be required all around the site because it abuts “Residential”. 
Access would be required and any required infrastructure could not be counted 
toward lot sizes. The actual yield on the three acres would be based on how 
much improvement would have to be done in order to develop it. 
 
Commissioner Broemmer asked how providing access would affect setbacks and 
buffers on the subject petition.  Ms. McCaskill-Clay replied that the build-able 
space is severely diminished so that One-Acre zoning is not workable unless 
only one house is built on the site. E-One-Half Acre zoning best meets the 
Petitioner’s needs in order to build the two homes he is proposing. No more than 
two homes could be built on the site because of the narrowness of the site. 
  
ISSUES: 
1. What is the effect of the proposed development on lakes in the Chesterfield 

Lakes subdivision? Should soundings be required to establish a baseline? 
Should a bond in the amount of $1 million be required to protect the lakes? 

2. Setting a precedent of E One-Half Acre zoning, specifically for the rear 
portion of the property that was withdrawn from the petition. 

3. Are half-acre lot sizes appropriate for the development vs. full-acre lots? 
4. Possibility of providing some contingency to have the buffering not be 

contingent on the lot size. 
5. Alteration of ruggedness of the site – difficulty of developing the site. What 

would it take to develop the site, taking into consideration the integrity of the 
trees on the site? 

6. Access to both the front and rear portions of the site. 
7. Two single-family detached dwellings on the site. 
8. How close would the houses be to one another on the site? 
9. Since detention is not required, how will runoff be prevented considering the 

amount of extensive grading that will be necessary? 
 
Commissioner Asmus read the Closing Comments for the Public Hearings.  

 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Broemmer made a motion to approve the minutes of the  
March 12, 2007 Planning Commission Meeting. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Schenberg and passed by a voice vote of 9 to 0.  
 
 



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

8 

VI.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
RE:  P.Z. 08-2007 Chesterfield Valley Power Sports (17501 N. Outer 40 

Road) 
 
Petitioner: 
1.  Mr. John Williams, 17501 North Outer 40 Road, Chesterfield, MO stated he 

was available for questions. 
 
 
VII. SITE PLANS, BUILDING ELEVATIONS AND SIGNS 
 

A. 1283 Rouge River Court: Residential Addition on an existing home 
zoned “R-1A” Residence District located at 1283 Rouge River Court 
in the Conway Forest Subdivision.  

 
Commissioner O’Connor, representing the Site Plan Committee, made a 
motion to approve the Residential Addition. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Banks and passed by a voice vote of 9 to 0. 
 

 
B. 1296 Luray Drive: Residential Addition on an existing home zoned 

“R-1A” Residence District located at 1296 Luray Drive in the 
Shenandoah Subdivision.  
 

Commissioner O’Connor, representing the Site Plan Committee, made a 
motion to approve the Residential Addition. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Schenberg and passed by a voice vote of 9 to 0. 
 
 

C. St. John’s Mercy: A request to approve a Sign Package for the  
St. John’s Mercy Rehabilitation Hospital, at 14561 North Outer Forty 
Road.  A 6.048-acre “PC” Planned Commercial District located south 
of Conway Road, approximately 900 feet east of Still House Creek 
Road. 

 
Commissioner O’Connor, representing the Site Plan Committee, made a 
motion to approve the Sign Package. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Broemmer and passed by a voice vote of 9 to 0. 
 



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

9 

 
VIII. OLD BUSINESS  
 

A. P.Z. 08-2007 Chesterfield Valley Power Sports (17501 N. Outer 40 
Road):  A request for an amendment to City of Chesterfield 
Ordinance 1372 to allow for a two-story building in this “C-8” Planned 
Commercial District. (17U510051) 

 
Ms. Aimee Nassif, Senior Planner, stated that the Public Hearing was held on 
March 12, 2007. Both the Preliminary Plan and the Attachment A conform to all 
requirements of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, as well as the Comprehensive 
Plan. The Attachment A also includes language permitting outdoor display of a 
maximum of six vehicles. 
 
Commissioner Sherman made a motion to approve P.Z. 08-2007 
Chesterfield Valley Power Sports (17501 N. Outer 40 Road). The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Broemmer.   
 
Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: 
 

Aye: Commissioner Perantoni, Commissioner Schenberg,  
 Commissioner Sherman, Commissioner Asmus,  
 Commissioner Banks, Commissioner Broemmer, 

Commissioner Geckeler, Commissioner O’Connor,  
Chairman Hirsch 

   
Nay: None 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 9 to 0. 

 
 
B. P.Z. 09-2007 City of Chesterfield (Beckemeier Property):  A 

request for a change of zoning from “NU” Non-Urban District to “PS” 
Park and Scenic for two (2) parcels located on the north side of Olive 
Boulevard, directly west of the Mansions at Spyglass Summit 
Subdivision. Total area to be rezoned: 48.748 acres 14401 and 
14415 Olive Boulevard (16R220194 and 16R220206) 

 
Commissioner Broemmer made a motion to approve P.Z. 09-2007 City of 
Chesterfield (Beckemeier Property). The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Banks.   



Planning Commission Meeting Summary 

March 27, 2006 

10 

 
Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: 
 

Aye: Commissioner Schenberg, Commissioner Sherman,  
Commissioner Asmus, Commissioner Banks,  
Commissioner Broemmer, Commissioner Geckeler,  
Commissioner O’Connor, Commissioner Perantoni,  
Chairman Hirsch 

   
Nay: None 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 9 to 0. 
 
 
IX. NEW BUSINESS - None 

 
 

X. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
A. Ordinance Review Committee 

 
Chair Hirsch announced that three meetings of the Ordinance Review Committee 
have been scheduled for: 

���� April 24, 2007 – 3:00 p.m. 
���� May 1, 2007 – 5:00 p.m. 
���� May 15, 2007 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
City Attorney Heggie has prepared proposed revisions to the By-Laws of the 
Planning Commission to bring the By-Laws up to current practice. A meeting will 
be scheduled 15 minutes prior to the next Site Plan Committee for the Officers, 
and any other Commissioners who would like to attend, to discuss the By-Laws. 
The proposed changes will be made available in the next meeting packet. 
 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
David Banks, Secretary 
 
 
 
 



























P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 1 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

ATTACHMENT A

All provisions of the City of Chesterfield City Code shall apply to this
development except as specifically modified herein.

I.  SPECIFIC CRITERIA

A.  PERMITTED USES

 1.  The uses allowed in this “PC” Planned Commercial District shall be:

  a. Offices or Office Buildings

  b. One (1) parking garage

B.  FLOOR AREA, HEIGHT, BUILDING AND PARKING STRUCTURE
  REQUIREMENTS

1.  BUILDING REQUIREMENTS

a.  A minimum of forty-five percent (45%) open space is
required for this development.

C.    SETBACKS

1. STRUCTURE SETBACKS
No building or structure, other than: a freestanding project
identification sign, boundary and retaining walls, light standards,
flag poles or fences will be located within the following setbacks:

a. Ninety-five (95) feet from the right-of-way of Conway Road on
the northern boundary of this Planned Commercial “PC”
District.

b. Twenty-five (25) feet from any property line adjoining property
in the “NU” Non-Urban, “PS” Park and Scenic, or any “R”
Residence District.  Any structure that exceeds thirty (30) feet
in height which adjoins property in the “NU” Non-Urban, “PS”
Park and Scenic, or any “R” Residence District must be set
back an additional one (1) foot for every two (2) feet in height
above  thirty (30) feet.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 2 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

c. Fifty (50) feet from the southern property line bearing N 70°
04’ 17” W.

d. Twenty (20) feet from the eastern property line bearing S 04°
50’ 21” E.

   2. PARKING SETBACKS

 No parking stall, loading space, internal driveway, or roadway,
except points of ingress and egress, will be located within the
following setbacks:

a. Eighteen (18) feet from the right-of-way of Conway Road.

b. Twenty-five (25) feet from any property line adjoining
 property in the “NU” Non-Urban, “PS” Park and Scenic, or
 any “R” Residence District.  Any structure that exceeds thirty
 (30) feet in height which adjoins property in the “NU” Non-
 Urban, “PS” Park and Scenic, or any “R” Residence District
 must be set back an additional one (1) foot for every two (2)
 feet in height above thirty (30) feet.

c.  Eighteen (18) feet from the southern property line bearing N
 70° 04’ 17” W.

d.  Thirteen (13) feet from the eastern property line bearing S
 04° 50’ 21” E.

D.   PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS

1. Parking and loading spaces for this development will be as required
in the  City of Chesterfield Code.

2. Construction Parking

 a. The streets surrounding this development and any street
 used for construction access thereto shall be cleaned
 throughout the day.  The developer shall keep the road clear
 of mud and debris at all times.

 b. Provide adequate off-street stabilized parking area(s) for
 construction employees and a washdown station for
 construction vehicles entering and leaving the site in order
 to eliminate the condition whereby mud from construction
 and employee vehicles is tracked onto the pavement
 causing hazardous roadway and driving conditions.

3. Parking lots shall not be used as streets.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 3 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

  4.   No construction related parking shall be permitted within the
  Conway Road right-of-way.

 E. LANDSCAPE AND TREE REQUIREMENTS

1. The developer shall adhere to the Tree Manual of the City of
Chesterfield City Code.

2. Landscaping in the right of way, if proposed, shall be reviewed by
the City of Chesterfield, the Missouri Department of Transportation
and/or the St. Louis County Department of Highways and Traffic.

F. SIGN REQUIREMENTS

1.  Sign package submittal materials shall be required for this
development. All sign packages shall be reviewed and approved by
the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission.

2. Ornamental Entrance Monument construction, if proposed, shall be
reviewed by the City of Chesterfield, Missouri Department of
Transportation, and/or the St. Louis County Department of
Highways and Traffic, for sight distance considerations prior to
installation or construction.

 G. LIGHT REQUIREMENTS

Provide a lighting plan and cut sheet in accordance with the City of
Chesterfield Code.

H. ARCHITECTURAL

1.   The developer shall submit architectural elevations, including but
not limited to, colored renderings and building materials.
Architectural information is to be reviewed by the Architectural
Review Board and the Planning Commission.

2.   Building facades should be articulated by using color, arrangement
or change in materials to emphasize the facade elements.  The
planes of the exterior walls may be varied in height, depth or
direction.  Extremely long facades shall be designed with sufficient
building articulation and landscaping to avoid a monotonous or
overpowering appearance.

 3. Trash enclosures: The location and elevation of any trash
enclosures will be as approved by the Planning Commission on the
Site Development Plan.  All exterior trash areas will be enclosed
with a six (6) foot high sight-proof enclosure complimented by
adequate landscaping approved by the Planning Commission on
the Site Development Plan.  The material will be as approved by

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 4 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

the Planning Commission in conjunction with the Site Development
Plan.

4.   Mechanical equipment will be adequately screened by roofing or
other material as approved by the Planning Commission.

I. ACCESS/ACCESS MANAGEMENT

1. No direct access to Highway 40/64 or Chesterfield Parkway will be
allowed for this development.

2.   The property bound by this ordinance shall be allowed one (1)
defeasible entrance to Conway Road. The entrance shall be
located near the western property line as directed by the City of
Chesterfield.  The defeasible entrance shall be temporary until such
time that the use of the adjoining parcel to the west is revised and
installation of a common entrance is practical.  The common
entrance shall align with the commercial entrance for the
Applebee’s restaurant in the Fairfield Suites development as
directed by the City of Chesterfield.  Cross access easements shall
be provided by both parcels as directed by the City of Chesterfield.
The defeasible entrance shall be removed and relocated within six
(6) months of written notice by the City of Chesterfield.  A Special
Cash escrow for a portion of the common entrance and all work
necessary to remove the defeasible entrance will be required prior
to approval of the Improvement Plans.

3. Northbound left turns from Chesterfield Parkway East to westbound
Conway Road are currently prohibited, and will not be permitted
under existing geometric conditions and I-64 ramp location.

4.   Ingress and egress must conform to MoDOT’s Access
Management Guidelines and must be reviewed and approved by
MoDOT.  Any improvements within MoDOT’s right of way will
require permit.  To the entrance geometrics and drainage design
shall be in accordance with Missouri Department of Transportation
(MoDOT) standards.

J. PUBLIC/PRIVATE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING
 PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION

1. Obtain approvals from the City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County
Department of Highways and Traffic and the Missouri Department
of Transportation for areas of new dedication, and roadway
improvements.

2.   Provide a four (4) foot wide sidewalk along Conway Road. If the
sidewalk cannot be constructed within the existing right of way,
provide a sidewalk, maintenance, utility, and roadway widening

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 5 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

easement as necessary to extend from the right of way to one foot
beyond the sidewalk.  The easement shall be established prior to
approval of the Improvement Plans.

3. Provide the necessary easements and a cash escrow for future
construction of an eight (8) foot wide sidewalk, street trees, and
street lights along the Chesterfield Parkway frontage of the site in
accordance with the City of Chesterfield “Pathway on the Parkway”
project.  The easements and escrow must be established prior to
approval of the improvement plans.

4.  Conform to the requirements and/or recommendations of the
Missouri Department of Transportation regarding State Route 64/40
in the area.

5.  Propose to flatten the embankment along I-64 to be no greater than
3:1 slope.

 K.       TRAFFIC STUDY

Provide a traffic study as directed by the City of Chesterfield, St. Louis
County Department of Highways and Traffic and/or the Missouri
Department of Transportation.  The scope of the study shall include
internal and external circulation and may be limited to site specific
impacts, such as the need for additional lanes, entrance configuration,
geometrics, sight distance, traffic signal modifications or other
improvements required, as long as the density of the proposed
development falls within the parameters of the City’s traffic model.
Should the density be other than the density assumed in the model,
regional issues shall be addressed as directed by the City of Chesterfield.

L. POWER OF REVIEW

The Mayor or a Councilmember of the Ward in which a development is
proposed may request that the site plan be reviewed and approved by the
entire City Council.  This request must be made no later than twenty-four
(24) hours before posting the agenda for the next City Council meeting
after Planning Commission review and approval of the site plan.  The City
Council will then take appropriate action relative to the proposal.

 M. STORMWATER AND SANITARY SEWER

1. The site shall provide for the positive drainage of storm water and it
shall be discharged at an adequate natural discharge point or an
adequate piped system.

2. Detention/retention and other storm water quantity and quality
management measures are to be provided in each watershed as
required by the City of Chesterfield.  The storm water quantity

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 6 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

management facilities, related to flood and channel protection, shall
be operational prior to paving of any driveways or parking areas in
non-residential development or issuance of building permits
exceeding sixty (60%) of approved dwelling units in each plat,
watershed or phase of residential developments.  The location and
types of storm water management facilities shall be identified on
the Site Development Plan.

3. Provide public sewer service for the site, including sanitary force
main, gravity lines and/or regional pump stations, in accordance
with the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District specifications and
requirements.

4. Downstream sanitary sewers will also need to be evaluated to
ensure adequate capacity.  Downstream sanitary sewers may need
to be replaced or upgraded.

5. All drainage detention storage facilities shall be placed outside of
the standard governmental agency planning and zoning setbacks,
or fifteen (15) feet from the new or existing right of way line,
whichever is greater.

6. Provide adequate detention and/or hydraulic calculations for review
and approval of all stormwater that will encroach on MODOT right
of way.

7. If stormwater is discharged to the north stormwater should be
controlled as required by the Chesterfield Valley Master Facility
Plan.  If stormwater is discharged to the south detention may be
required for the project site such that the release rates will not
exceed the allowable release rates for the post developed peak
flow of the two (2) year and one hundred (100) year, twenty-four
(24) hour storm event.  Stormwater must be discharged at an
adequate discharge point.  Wetland mitigation will not be allowed
within the detention basin area.  Additional detention may also be
required for water quality and channel protection.

N.       GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.

Provide a geotechnical report, prepared by a registered professional
engineer licensed to practice in the State of Missouri, as directed by the
Department of Public Works.  The report shall verify the suitability of
grading and proposed improvements with soil and geologic conditions and
address the existence of any potential sinkhole, ponds, dams, septic
fields, etc., and recommendations for treatment.  A statement of
compliance, signed and sealed by the geotechnical engineer preparing the
report, shall be included on all Site Development Plans and Improvement
Plans.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 7 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

O.       MISCELLANEOUS

All utilities will be installed underground.  The development of this parcel
will coordinate the installation of all utilities in conjunction with the
construction of any roadway on site.

II. TIME PERIOD FOR SUBMITTAL OF SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLANS
 AND SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

A. The developer shall submit a concept plan within eighteen (18) months of
City Council approval of the change of zoning.

B. In lieu of submitting a Site Development Concept Plan and Site
Development Section Plans, the petitioner may submit a Site
Development Plan for the entire development within eighteen (18) months
of the date of approval of the change of zoning by the City.

C. Failure to comply with these submittal requirements will result in the
expiration of the change of zoning and will require a new public hearing.

D. Said Plan shall be submitted in accordance with the combined
requirements for Site Development Section and Concept Plans.  The
submission of Amended Site Development Plans by sections of this
project to the Planning Commission shall be permitted if this option is
utilized.

E. Where due cause is shown by the developer, this time interval for plan
submittal may be extended through appeal to and approval by the
Planning Commission.

 III.  COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION

A. Substantial construction shall commence within two (2) years of approval
of the Site Development Concept Plan or Site Development Plan, unless
otherwise authorized by ordinance.  Substantial construction means final
grading for roadways necessary for first approved plat or phase of
construction and commencement of installation of sanitary storm sewers.

B.  Where due cause is shown by the developer, the Commission may extend
the period to commence construction for not more than one additional
year.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 8 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

IV. GENERAL CRITERIA

 A. SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

 The Site Development Plan shall adhere to the above criteria and to the
 following:

1. Location map, north arrow, and plan scale. The scale shall be no
greater than one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet.

2. Outboundary plat and legal description of the property.

3. Density Calculations.

4. Parking calculations. Including calculation for all off street parking
spaces, required and proposed, and the number, size and location
for handicap designed.

5. Provide open space percentage for overall development including
separate percentage for each lot on the plan.

6. Provide Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.).

7. A note indicating all utilities will be installed underground.

8. A note indicating signage approval is separate process.

9. Depict the location of all buildings, size, including height and
distance from adjacent property lines and proposed use.

10. Specific structure and parking setbacks along all roadways and
property lines.

11. Indicate location of all existing and proposed freestanding
monument signs.

12. Zoning district lines, subdivision name, lot number, dimensions, and
area, and zoning of adjacent parcels where different than site.

13. Floodplain boundaries.

14. Depict existing and proposed improvements within 150 feet of the
site as directed.  Improvements include, but are not limited to,
roadways, driveways and walkways adjacent to and across the
street from the site,  and significant natural features, such as
wooded areas and rock formations, that are to remain or be
removed.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 9 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

15. Depict all existing and proposed easements and rights-of-way
within one hundred and fifty (150) feet of the site and all existing or
proposed off-site easements and rights-of-way required for
proposed improvements.

16. Indicate the location of proposed storm sewers, detention basins,
sanitary sewers and connection(s) to the existing systems.

17. Depict existing and proposed contours at intervals of not more than
one (1) foot, and extending 150 feet beyond the limits of the site as
directed.

18. Address trees and landscaping in accordance with the City of
Chesterfield Code.

19. Provide a lighting plan in accordance with the City of Chesterfield
Code.

20. Comply with all preliminary plat requirements of the City of
Chesterfield Subdivision Ordinance.

21. Signed and sealed in conformance with the State of Missouri
Department of Economic Development, Division of Professional
Registration, Missouri Board for Architects, Professional Engineers
and Land Surveyors requirements.

22. Provide comments/approvals from the appropriate Fire District, the
Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District, the St. Louis County
Department of Highways and Traffic, Monarch Levee District, Spirit
of St. Louis Airport.

23. Compliance with Sky Exposure Plane.

V. TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTION

A. The developer will contribute a Traffic Generation Assessment (TGA) to
the Chesterfield Village Road Trust Fund.  This contribution shall not
exceed an amount established by multiplying the ordinance required
parking spaces for the difference between the existing and proposed uses
by the following rate schedule:

Type of Development    Required Contribution

General Office     $537.19/Parking Space
Loading Space     $2,637.29/Loading Space

(Parking spaces as required by the City of Chesterfield Code.)
If types of development differ from those listed, rates shall be provided by
the Saint Louis County Department of Highways and Traffic.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 10 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

Credits for roadway improvements will be as approved by the City of
Chesterfield and/or St. Louis County Department of Highways and Traffic.

If this development is located within a trust fund area, any portion of the
traffic generation assessment contribution which remains following
completion of road improvements required by the development will be
retained in the appropriate trust fund.

The amount of this required contribution, if not submitted by January 1,
2007 will be adjusted on that date and on the first day of January in each
succeeding year thereafter in accordance with the construction cost index
as determined by the St. Louis County Department of Highways and
Traffic.

Traffic generation assessment contributions shall be deposited with the
St. Louis County prior to the issuance of building permits.  If development
phasing is anticipated, the developer will provide the traffic generation
assessment contribution prior to issuance of building permits for each
phase of development.

VI. RECORDING

Within sixty (60) days of approval of any development plan by the City of
Chesterfield, the approved Plan will be recorded with the St. Louis County
Recorder of Deeds.  Failure to do so will result in the expiration of approval of
said plan and require re-approval of a plan by the Planning Commission.

VII. VERIFICATION PRIOR TO FOUNDATION OR BUILDING PERMITS

A. Prior to the issuance of foundation or building permits, all approvals from
all applicable agencies and the Department of Public Works, as
applicable, must be received by the City of Chesterfield Department of
Planning.

B. Prior to issuance of foundation or building permits, all approvals from the
City of Chesterfield, the Missouri Department of Transportation the St.
Louis County Department of Highways and Traffic and the Metropolitan St.
Louis Sewer District must be received by the St. Louis County Department
of Public Works.

VIII. ENFORCEMENT

A. The City of Chesterfield, Missouri will enforce the conditions of this
ordinance in accordance with the Site Development Plan approved by the
City of Chesterfield and the terms of this Attachment A.

B. Failure to comply with any or all the conditions of this ordinance will be
adequate cause for revocation of approvals/permits by reviewing
Departments and Commissions.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


P.Z. 16-2006 Conway Point Office Building (Nelson McBride)

Planning Commission February 12, 2007 Page 11 of 11

Planning Commission April 9, 2007

C. Non-compliance with the specific requirements and conditions set forth in
this Ordinance and its attached conditions or other Ordinances of the City
of Chesterfield shall constitute an ordinance violation, subject, but not
limited to, the penalty provisions as set forth in the City of Chesterfield
Code.

D.  Waiver of Notice of Violation per the City of Chesterfield Code.

E. This document shall be read as a whole and any inconsistency to be
integrated to carry out the overall intent of this Attachment A.

DocumentsPDF
Complete

Click Here & Upgrade

Expanded Features
Unlimited Pages

http://www.pdfcomplete.com/1002/2001/upgrade.htm


































































































Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 1 of 11 

 
 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
All provisions of the City of Chesterfield City Code shall apply to this 
development except as specifically modified herein.   
 

 
I.  SPECIFIC CRITERIA 
 

A.  PERMITTED USES 
 

 1.  The uses allowed in this “PC” Planned Commercial District shall be: 
   

a. Associate work and storage areas required by a business, 
firm or service to carry on business operations. 

 
b. Barber shops and beauty parlors. 

 
c. Bookstores. 

 
d. Dry cleaning drop-off and pick up stations. 

 
e. Financial institutions. 

 
f. Medical and dental offices. 

 
g. Offices or office buildings. 

 
h. Restaurants, fast food. 

 
i. Restaurants, sit down. 

 
j. Schools for business, professional, or technical training, but 

not including outdoor areas for driving or heavy equipment 
training. 

 
k. Service facilities, studios, or work areas for antique 

salespersons, artists, candy makers, craft persons, 
dressmakers, tailors, music teachers, dance teachers, 
typists, and stenographers, including cabinet makers, film 
processors, fishing tackle and bait shops, and souvenir 
sales, goods and services associated with these uses may 
be sold or provided directly to the public on the premises. 

 
 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 2 of 11 

 
 
 
 

 
l. Stores, shops, markets, service facilities, and automatic 

vending facilities in which goods or services of any kind, 
including indoor sale of motor vehicles, are being offered for 
sale or hire to the general public on the premises. 

          
B.  FLOOR AREA, HEIGHT, BUILDING AND PARKING STRUCTURE 

  REQUIREMENTS 
 

1.  BUILDING REQUIREMENTS 
 
a. A minimum of forty-five percent (45%) openspace is 

required for this development. 
 
C.    SETBACKS 

 
1. STRUCTURE SETBACKS 

No building or structure, other than: a freestanding project 
identification sign, boundary and retaining walls, light standards, 
flag poles or fences will be located within the following setbacks: 
 
a. One hundred forty (140) feet from the right-of-way  
          of Chesterfield Airport Road on the northern boundary of the  
          “PC” District.   

 
b. Thirty-five (35) feet from the eastern boundary of the “PC”  
 District.  
 
c. Eighty (80) feet from the southern boundary of the “PC” 
 District. 
 
d. Thirty (30) feet from the western boundary of the “PC”
 District. 

 
2. PARKING SETBACKS 

 
 a. No parking stall or loading space, except points of ingress or 

 egress, will be located within the following setbacks: 
   

i. Thirty (30) feet from the right-of-way of Chesterfield 
Airport Road. 

 
ii. Thirty-five (35) feet from the eastern boundary of the 

“PC” District. 
 

iii. Forty (40) feet from the southern boundary of the “PC” 
 District. 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 3 of 11 

 
 
 
 

iv. Fifteen (15) feet from the western boundary of the 
 “PC” District. 

  
 b. No internal roadways or drives will be located within the  
  following setbacks:  
   

i. Thirty (30) feet from the right-of-way of Chesterfield 
Airport Road. 

 
ii. Fifteen (15) feet from all other property lines. 

       
D.   PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Parking and loading spaces for this development will be as required 
in the City of Chesterfield Code. 

 
2. Construction Parking 

 
 a. The streets surrounding this development and any street 

 used for construction access thereto shall be cleaned  
 throughout the day.  The developer shall keep the road clear 
 of mud and debris at all times. 

 
 b. Provide adequate off-street stabilized parking area(s) for 

 construction employees and a washdown station for 
 construction vehicles entering and leaving the site in order 
 to eliminate the condition whereby mud from construction 
 and employee vehicles is tracked onto the pavement 
 causing hazardous roadway and driving conditions.  

 
 c. No construction related parking shall be permitted within any 

 street right of way. 
 

  3. Parking lots shall not be used as streets. 
 

 E. LANDSCAPE AND TREE REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. The developer shall adhere to the Tree Manual of the City of 
Chesterfield Code. 

 
F. SIGN REQUIREMENTS 

 
1.  Sign package submittal materials shall be required for this 

development. All sign packages shall be reviewed and approved by 
the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission. 

 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 4 of 11 

 
 
 
 

2. Ornamental Entrance Monument construction, if proposed, shall be 
reviewed by the City of Chesterfield, and/or the St. Louis County 
Department of Highways and Traffic, for sight distance 
considerations prior to installation or construction. 

 
 G. LIGHT REQUIREMENTS 

Provide a lighting plan and cut sheet in accordance with the City of 
Chesterfield Code.  

 
H. ARCHITECTURAL  

 
1.   The developer shall submit architectural elevations, including but 

not limited to, colored renderings and building materials.  
Architectural information is to be reviewed by the Architectural 
Review Board and the Planning Commission. 

 
2.   Building facades should be articulated by using color, arrangement 

or change in materials to emphasize the facade elements.  The 
planes of the exterior walls may be varied in height, depth or 
direction.  Extremely long facades shall be designed with sufficient 
building articulation and landscaping to avoid a monotonous or 
overpowering appearance.   

 
 3. Trash enclosures: The location, material, and elevation of any trash 

enclosures will be as approved by the Planning Commission on the 
Site Development Plan.  All exterior trash areas will be enclosed 
with a six (6) foot high sight-proof enclosure complimented by 
adequate landscaping approved by the Planning Commission on 
the Site Development Plan.   

 
4.   Mechanical equipment will be adequately screened by roofing or 

other material as approved by the Planning Commission. 
 
 

I. ACCESS/ACCESS MANAGEMENT 
 
Access to this development shall be from Chesterfield Industrial Boulevard 
via the existing driveway easement on Lot 1A-1 of Chesterfield Industrial 
Park subdivision as recorded in Plat Book 278, Page 12.  No direct access 
to Chesterfield Airport Road shall be permitted. 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 5 of 11 

 
 
 
 

J. PUBLIC/PRIVATE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING 
 PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION 

 
 

1. Any request to install a gate at the entrance to this development 
must be approved by the City of Chesterfield and the St. Louis 
County Department of Highways and Traffic.  No gate installation 
will be permitted on public right of way.   

 
2. Provide a five (5) foot wide sidewalk, conforming to ADA standards, 

along Chesterfield Airport Road.  The sidewalk shall connect to the 
sidewalk constructed with the adjacent development to the east and 
extend across the lot to the west to Chesterfield Industrial 
Boulevard.  The sidewalk shall be located within a six (6) foot wide 
sidewalk, maintenance and utility easement as directed by the City 
of Chesterfield. 

 
K. POWER OF REVIEW 

  
The Mayor or a Councilmember of the Ward in which a development is 
proposed may request that the site plan be reviewed and approved by the 
entire City Council.  This request must be made no later than twenty-four 
(24) hours before posting the agenda for the next City Council meeting 
after Planning Commission review and approval of the site plan.  The City 
Council will then take appropriate action relative to the proposal. 

  
 L. STORMWATER  

 
1. The site shall provide for the positive drainage of storm water and it 

shall be discharged at an adequate natural discharge point or 
connected to an adequate piped system.   

 
2. Detention/retention and other storm water quantity and quality 

management measures are to be provided in each watershed as 
required by the City of Chesterfield.  The storm water quantity 
management facilities, related to flood and channel protection, shall 
be operational prior to paving of any driveways or parking areas in 
non-residential development or issuance of building permits 
exceeding sixty (60%) percent of approved dwelling units in each 
plat, watershed or phase of residential developments.  The location 
and types of storm water management facilities shall be identified 
on the Site Development Plan.   

 
3. The Chesterfield Valley Master Storm Water Plan indicates a ten 

(10) foot wide flat bottom ditch with 4:1 side slopes shall be 
constructed near the east property line of this site and that drainage 
from this site is to be directed to the south.  The developer shall be 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 6 of 11 

 
 
 
 

responsible for construction of the required storm water 
improvements and coordination with the owners of the properties 
affected by construction of the required improvements.   

 
  The developer may elect to propose alternate geometry, size 

 and/or type of storm water improvements that are functionally 
 equivalent to the required improvements.  Functional equivalence is 
 said to be achieved when, as determined by the Director of Public 
 Works, the alternate proposal provides the same hydraulic function, 
 connectivity, and system-wide benefits without adversely affecting 
 any of the following: water surface profiles at any location outside 
 the development; future capital expenditures; maintenance 
 obligations; equipment needs; frequency of maintenance; and 
 probability of malfunction.  The City will consider, but is not 
 obligated to accept, the developer’s alternate plans.  If the Director 
 of Public Works determines that the developer’s proposal may be 
 functionally equivalent to the Chesterfield Valley Master Storm 
 Water Plan improvements, hydraulic routing calculations will be 
 performed to make a final determination of functional equivalence.  
 The Director will consider the developer’s proposal, but is not 
 obligated to have the hydraulic analysis performed if any of the 
 other criteria regarding functional equivalence will not be met.  The 
 hydraulic routing calculations regarding functional equivalence may 
 be performed by a consultant retained by the City of Chesterfield.  
 The developer shall be responsible for all costs related to 
 consideration of an alternate proposal, which shall include any 
 costs related to work performed by the consultant. 

 
4. Provide a Chesterfield Valley Storm Water Easement along the 

east property line to accommodate the construction of the 
Chesterfield Valley Master Storm Water Plan channel in that area, 
and depict the channel on the Site Development Plan and 
improvement plans.  Maintenance of the required channel shall be 
the responsibility of the property owner. 

 
5. All Chesterfield Valley Master Storm Water Plan improvements 

shall be operational prior to the paving of any driveways or parking 
areas. 

 
M.  SANITARY SEWER 

 
1. Private sewer lines and laterals cannot cross property lines.  

Extension of public sewer lines will be necessary to serve this site 
and proper easements shall be required. 

 
2. Treatment may be required at this site for water quality per MSD 

February 2006 guidelines. 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 7 of 11 

 
 
 
 

N.       MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1.   All utilities will be installed underground.  The development of this 
parcel will coordinate the installation of all utilities in conjunction 
with the construction of any roadway on site. 

 
2. Prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit, the Chesterfield 

Valley Master Storm Water Plan channel on site and to the south 
shall be graded as necessary to provide positive drainage for this 
site. 

 
II. TIME PERIOD FOR SUBMITTAL OF SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLANS 
 AND SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS  
 

A. The developer shall submit a concept plan within eighteen (18) months of 
City Council approval of the change of zoning.   

 
B. In lieu of submitting a Site Development Concept Plan and Site 

Development Section Plans, the petitioner may submit a Site 
Development Plan for the entire development within eighteen (18) months 
of the date of approval of the change of zoning by the City.  

 
C. Failure to comply with these submittal requirements will result in the 

expiration of the change of zoning and will require a new public hearing. 
 

D. Said Plan shall be submitted in accordance with the combined 
requirements for Site Development Section and Concept Plans.  The 
submission of Amended Site Development Plans by sections of this 
project to the Planning Commission shall be permitted if this option is 
utilized. 

 
E. Where due cause is shown by the developer, this time interval for plan 

submittal may be extended through appeal to and approval by the 
Planning Commission.  

  
  
 III.  COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION 
      

A. Substantial construction shall commence within two (2) years of approval 
of the site development concept plan or site development plan, unless 
otherwise authorized by ordinance.   

 
B.  Where due cause is shown by the developer, the Commission may extend 

the period to commence construction for not more than one additional 
year.   

 
 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 8 of 11 

 
 
 
 

IV. GENERAL CRITERIA 

 

 A. SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

   
 The Site Development Plan shall adhere to the above criteria and to the 
 following:  

 
1. Location map, north arrow, and plan scale. The scale shall be no 

greater than one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet. 
 

2. Outboundary plat and legal description of the property. 
 
3. Density Calculations. 
 
4. Parking calculations. Including calculation for all off street parking 

spaces, required and proposed, and the number, size and location 
for handicap designed. 

 
5. Provide open space percentage for overall development including 

separate percentage for each lot on the plan.   
 
6. Provide Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.). 
 
7. A note indicating all utilities will be installed underground. 
 
8. A note indicating signage approval is separate process. 
 
9. Depict the location of all buildings, size, including height and 

distance from adjacent property lines and proposed use. 
 
10. Specific structure and parking setbacks along all roadways and 

property lines. 
 
11. Indicate location of all existing and proposed freestanding 

monument signs. 
 
12. Zoning district lines, subdivision name, lot number, dimensions, and 

area, and zoning of adjacent parcels where different than site. 
 
13. Floodplain boundaries.   
 
14. Depict existing and proposed improvements within 150 feet of the 

site as directed.  Improvements include, but are not limited to, 
roadways, driveways and walkways adjacent to and across the 
street from the site,  

 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 9 of 11 

 
 
 
 

 and significant natural features, such as wooded areas and rock 
 formations, that are to remain or be removed. 
 
15. Depict all existing and proposed easements and rights-of-way 

within one hundred and fifty (150) feet of the site and all existing or 
proposed off-site easements and rights-of-way required for 
proposed improvements. 

 
16. Indicate the location of proposed storm sewers, detention basins, 

sanitary sewers and connection(s) to the existing systems. 
 
17. Depict existing and proposed contours at intervals of not more than 

one (1) foot, and extending 150 feet beyond the limits of the site as 
directed. 

 
18. Address trees and landscaping in accordance with the City of 

Chesterfield Code.  
 
19. Provide a lighting plan in accordance with the City of Chesterfield 

Code. 
 
20. Comply with all preliminary plat requirements of the City of 

Chesterfield Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
21. Signed and sealed in conformance with the State of Missouri 

Department of Economic Development, Division of Professional 
Registration, Missouri Board for Architects, Professional Engineers 
and Land Surveyors requirements. 

 
22. Provide comments/approvals from the appropriate Fire District, the 

Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District, the St. Louis County 
Department of Highways and Traffic, Monarch Levee District, Spirit 
of St. Louis Airport. 

 
23. Compliance with Sky Exposure Plane. 
 
 

V. CHESTERFIELD VALLEY TRUST FUND 
 
 Roads 
 

The roadway improvement contribution is based on land and building use.  The 
roadway contributions are necessary to help defray the cost of engineering, right 
of way acquisition, and major roadway construction in accordance with the 
Chesterfield Valley Road Improvement Plan on file with the Saint Louis County 
Department of Highways and Traffic.  The amount of the developer’s contribution 
to this fund shall be computed based on the following: 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 10 of 11 

 
 
 
 

 Type of Development   Required Contribution  
  Commercial     $2.07/sq. ft. of building space 
  Office      $1.44/sq. ft. of building space 
  Industrial     $4,986.59/acre 
 

If types of development proposed differ from those listed, rates shall be provided 
by the St. Louis County Department of Highways and Traffic. 
 
Credits for roadway improvements required will be awarded as directed by Saint 
Louis County Highways and Traffic.  Any portion of the roadway improvement 
contribution that remains, following completion of road improvements required by 
the development shall be retained in the appropriate Trust Fund. 
 
Traffic generation assessment contributions shall be deposited with St. Louis 
County prior to the issuance of building permits.  If development phasing is 
anticipated, the developer shall provide the traffic generation assessment 
contribution prior to issuance of building permits for each phase of development. 
 
 

 Water Main 
 
 The primary water line contribution is based on gross acreage of the 
 development land area.  The contribution shall be a sum of $654.66 per acre for 
 the total area as approved on the Site Development Plan to be used solely to 
 help defray the cost of constructing the primary water line serving the 
 Chesterfield Valley area.  
 
 The primary water line contribution shall be deposited with the St. Louis County 
 Department of Highways and Traffic.  The deposit shall be made before approval 
 of the Site Development Plan by the St. Louis Department of Highways and 
 Traffic.  Funds shall be payable to the “Treasurer, St. Louis County”. 
 

Stormwater 
 
The storm water contribution is based on gross acreage of the development land 

 area.  These funds are necessary to help defray the cost of engineering and 
 construction improvements for the collection and disposal of storm water from the 
 Chesterfield Valley in accordance with the Master Plan on file with and jointly 
 approved by St. Louis County and the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District.  The 
 amount of the storm water contribution will be computed based on $2,077.15 per 
 acre for the total area as approved on the Site Development Plan.  The storm 
 water contributions to the Trust Fund shall be deposited with the St. Louis County 
 Department of Highways and Traffic.  The deposit shall be made before the 
 issuance of a Special Use Permit (S.U.P.) by St. Louis County Highways and 
 Traffic.  Funds shall be payable to the “Treasurer, St. Louis County.” 

 
 



Planning Commission April 9, 2007                 P.Z. 03-2007 Chesterfield Retail Center 

  Page 11 of 11 

 
 
 
 

Sanitary Sewer 
 

 This project is in the Caulks Creek Surcharge area and is subject to a surcharge 
 of $2,750.00 per acre. 
 
 The sanitary sewer contributions within Chesterfield Valley area shall be 
 deposited with the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District as required by the 
 District. 
 
 The amount of these required contributions for the roadway, storm water and 
 primary water line improvements, if not submitted by January 1, 2008 shall be 
 adjusted on that date and on the first day of January in each succeeding year 
 thereafter in accordance with the construction cost index as determined by the 
 St. Louis County Department of Highways and Traffic. 
 
 Trust Fund contributions shall be deposited with St. Louis County in the form of a 
 cash escrow prior to the issuance of building permits. 
 
 
VI. RECORDING 

 
Within 60 days of approval of any development plan by the City of Chesterfield, 
the approved Plan will be recorded with the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds.  
Failure to do so will result in the expiration of approval of said plan and require 
re-approval of a plan by the Planning Commission. 

 
 
VII. ENFORCEMENT 
 

A. The City of Chesterfield, Missouri will enforce the conditions of this 
ordinance in accordance with the Site Development Plan approved by the 
City of Chesterfield and the terms of this Attachment A. 

  
B. Failure to comply with any or all the conditions of this ordinance will be 

adequate cause for revocation of approvals/permits by reviewing 
Departments and Commissions. 
 

C. Non-compliance with the specific requirements and conditions set forth in 
this Ordinance and its attached conditions or other Ordinances of the City 
of Chesterfield shall constitute an ordinance violation, subject, but not 
limited to, the penalty provisions as set forth in the City of Chesterfield 
Code. 
 

D.  Waiver of Notice of Violation per the City of Chesterfield Code.   
 

E. This document shall be read as a whole and any inconsistency to be 
integrated to carry out the overall intent of this Attachment A. 































 (b) To carry out other duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage of such 

officer; and  

 

 (c) To engage in other activities as directed by the Planning Commission. 

 

ARTICLE III – ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 

Section 1 A nominating committee of not less than three (3) Commissioners shall be 

appointed by the serving Chair of the Planning Commission in May of each year to nominate 

officers of the Planning Commission for the following year.  The committee shall report to the 

full Commission at the first meeting of the Planning Commission in June and the election of 

officers shall occur at that meeting at which time nominations from the floor shall be entertained.  

The new officers, when duly elected, shall hold office for one (1) year or until their successors 

shall take office. 

 

Section 2 The Chair may request nomination for two (2) or three (3) officers simultaneously 

or, at discretion of the Chair, require separate nomination and a separate vote for each elected. 

 

Section 3 A candidate receiving a majority vote of the Planning Commission shall be 

declared elected. 

 

Section 4 A vacancy in office shall be filled as soon as possible in accordance with the 

election procedures set forth herein or by a special election as directed by the Chair of the 

Commission. 

 

ARTICLE IV – MEETINGS 

 

Section 1 A regular meeting of the Planning Commission shall be held on the second and 

fourth Mondays of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers unless otherwise 

specified by the Planning Commission. 

 

Section 2 An additional or special meeting may be called by the Chair or at the request in 

writing of any three (3) or more members of the Commission. 

 

Section 3 A simple majority of the membership of the Commission shall constitute a 

quorum for the transaction of Commission business.  Each member of the Commission shall 

have one (1) vote. 

 

Section 4 An approval of a Conditional Use Permit or a recommendation of approval for a 

zoning amendment, zoning change, or a change in the comprehensive plan shall require the 

affirmative vote of at least five (5) members of the Planning Commission.  All other matters may 

be approved by a simple majority of those members present.  In the event of a minimum minority 

vote of three (3), any member of the minority may issue a minority report. 

 



Section 5 In the absence of the Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary the member present who is 

senior, in terms of service on the Planning Commission, shall preside. 

 

Section 6 Except as otherwise specified by these by-laws, Robert’s Rules of Order shall 

prevail at all meetings of the Commission. 

 

Section 7 The order of business at Meetings shall be: 

  

 (a) Public Hearings; 

  

 (b) Approval of minutes of previous meetings and hearings; 

  

 (c) Public Comment; 

 

 (d) Site Plans, Building Elevations, and Signs; 

  

 (e) Old Business; 

 

 (f) New Business; 

 

 (g) Reports of officers and committees; and  

 

 (h) Adjournment. 

 

Section 8 The Chair of the Commission or a majority of the Planning Commission may alter 

the order of business at any meeting. 

 

ARTICLE V – PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

Section 1 Public Hearings shall be held at the beginning of each meeting as necessary by 

Ordinance.  The Public Hearings shall be held in the City Council Chambers in the City Hall at 

7:00 p.m., unless otherwise specified by the Chair. 

 

Section 2 The order of business at a public hearing shall be as indicated in the public notice 

thereof. 

 

Section 3 The Chair of the Commission or a majority of the Planning Commission may alter 

the order of business at the hearing. 

 

Section 4 The rules of procedure governing hearings shall be: 

 

 (a) The number of hearings will not exceed two (2) petitions per agenda unless 

related petitions are presented and heard together at which time there may be four (4) petitions 

per agenda; 

 



 (b) The Chair of the Planning Commission may grant an exception to the number of 

hearings per agenda when necessary under special conditions. 

 

 (c) The petitioner, or representative of the petitioner, shall be granted fifteen (15) 

minutes per hearing to explain the petition. 

 

 (d) Speakers in favor of or opposed to a petition shall be granted ten (10) minutes 

when representing a group or organization. 

 

 (e) Speakers in favor of or opposed to a petition shall be granted five (5) minutes 

when not representing a group or organization. 

 

 (f) The Chair of the Planning Commission may grant an exception to the time limit 

granted to the petitioner, representative and speakers in favor/opposition when necessary under 

special conditions or unusual circumstances. 

 

ARTICLE VI – COMMITTEES 

 

Section 1 At the Meeting following his or her election, the Chair of the Planning 

Commission shall appoint for a term of one (1) year, three (3) or more members of the 

Commission to each of the following standing committees and shall designate the Chair of each: 

 

 (a) Comprehensive Planning Committee: This Committee shall have primary 

responsibility for advising the Department of Planning staff on intermediate and long-range 

planning.  The Comprehensive Planning Committee shall, by resolution, propose  changes to the 

Comprehensive Plan to the Planning Commission. 

 

 (b) Ordinance Review Committee: This committee shall have primary 

responsibility for reviewing and, advising, the Department of Planning staff on Ordinances 

affecting the planning process.  The Ordinance Review Committee shall, by resolution, propose 

topics for new or amended ordinances regarding the planning process to the Planning 

Commission. 

 

 (c) Site Plan Committee: This committee shall have primary responsibility for 

review and advising the Planning Commission on site plans and related matters.   The Site Plan 

Committee shall, by resolution, propose changes to the ordinances regarding site plans and 

related matters to the Planning Commission. 

 

 

 

Section 2 The Chair of the Planning Commission with the approval of the Commission may 

appoint special committees. 

 

Section 3 A committee’s vacancy shall be filled by the Chair of the Planning Commission. 

 

Deleted: and directing 

Deleted: and directing 

Deleted: /Landscape

Deleted: Department of Planning staff

Deleted:  and landscaping.



 

 

BY – LAWS  

 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD PLANNING COMMISSION 

(Amended 7/24/2000) 

 

 

ARTICLE I – OBJECTIVES 

 

     The objectives, purposes, duties and powers of the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission 

are those set forth in the City of Chesterfield Ordinances, as amended and supplemented and in  

relevant statutes of the State of Missouri as amended and supplemented. 

 

ARTICLE II – OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES 

 

Section 1.  The Chairman officers of the Planning Commission shall consist of a Chairman, a 

Vice-Chairman and a Secretary, each of whom shall be a member of the Planning 

Commission. 

 

Section 2.  The Chairman of the Planning Commission shall have the following powers  

  and duties: 

 

 (a) To preside at all meetings and hearings of the Commission; 

 

 (b) To appoint all members of the committees of the Commission; 

  

 (c) To have general charge of the activities of the Planning Commission 

  and to generally oversee the conduct of the affairs of the Commission; 

 

 (d) To call Special Meetings of the Commission; 

 

 (e) To carry out other duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage 

  on such officer; and 

 

 (f) Engage in other activities as directed by the Planning Commission. 

 

Section 3.  The Vice- Chairman of the Planning Commission shall have the following 

  powers and duties: 

 

 (a) To act for the Chairman in the Chairman’s absence; 

 

 (b) To perform those duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage 

  on such officer; and 

 

 (b) To carry out other duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage  

  on such officer; and 

 

 (c) Engage in other activities as directed by the Planning Commission. 

 

 



 

 

Section 4.  The Secretary  of the Planning Commission shall have the following  duties: 

 

 (a) To act for the Chairman and Vice- Chairman in their absence; 

 

 (b) To certify and maintain a record of each meeting and hearing of the 

  Planning Commission. 

 

 (c) To attend to the correspondence of the Planning Commission. 

 

 (d) To give to each Commission Member due notice of the time and place of each 

  Annual, Regular, or Special Meeting and of each Public Hearing of the  

  Commission.  The Secretary may delegate this responsibility to the  

  Planning Director; 

 

 (b) To carry out other duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage of  

  such officer; and 

 

 (c) To engage in other activities as directed by the Planning Commission.  

 

 

ARTICLE III – ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 

Section 1.  A nominating committee of not less than three (3) Commissioners shall be 

  appointed by the serving Chairman of the Planning Commission in May  

  of each year to nominate officers of the Planning Commission for the  

  following year.  The committee shall report to the full Commission at the first 

  meeting of the Planning Commission in June and the election of officers  

  shall occur at that meeting at which time nominations from the floor shall be  

  entertained.  The new officers, when duly elected, shall hold office for one 

  (1) year and or until their successors shall take office.   

 

Section 2.  The Chairman may request nomination for two (2)  or three (3) officers  

  simultaneously or, at discretion of the Chair, require separate nomination 

  and a separate vote for each elected.  

 

Section 3.  A candidate receiving a majority vote of the Planning Commission shall be 

  declared elected.  

 

 Section 4.  A vacancy in office shall be filled as soon as possible in accordance with the 

  election  procedure set forth herein or by a special election as directed by the  

  Chairman of the Commission. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV – MEETINGS 

 

Section 1.  A regular meeting of the Planning Commission shall be held on the second and 

fourth Mondays of each month at 7:00  p.m., in the City Council Chambers unless 

otherwise specified by the Chairman the Planning Commission.  

 

 



 

Section 2.  An additional or special meeting may be called by the Chairman, or at the 

  request in writing of any three (3) or more members of the Commission.  

 

Section 3.  A simple majority of the membership of the Commission shall constitute 

  a quorum for the transaction of Commission business.  Each member of the 

  Commission shall have one (1) vote.  

 

Section 4.  An approval of a Conditional Use Permit or a recommendation of approval  

  for a zoning amendment, or a major plan shall require the affirmative vote of  

  at least five (5) members of the Planning Commission.  All other matters may  

  be approved by a simple majority of those members present.  In the event of  

  a minimum minority vote of three (3), any member of the minority may issue 

  request a minority report be issued. 

 

Section 5.  In the absence of the Chairman, Vice- Chairman and Secretary the member  

  present who is senior, in terms of service on the Planning Commission, shall 

  preside.   

 

Section 6.  Except as otherwise specified by these by-laws, Robert’s Rules of Order  

  shall prevail at all meetings of the Commission. 

 

Section 7.  The order of business at Meetings shall be: 

 

 (a) Public Hearings; 

 

 (b) Approval of minutes of previous meetings and hearings; 

 

 (c) Public Comment;  

 

(d) Site Plans, Building Elevations, and Signs; 

 

(e) Old Business; 

 

(f) New Business; 

 

 (g) Reports of officers and committees; and 

 

 (h) Adjournment. 

 

Section 8.  The Chairman of the Commission or a majority of the Planning Commission  

  may alter the order of business at any meeting.  

 

 

ARTICLE V – PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

Section 1.  Public Hearing shall be held at the beginning of each meeting as necessary 

  by Ordinance.  The Public Hearings shall be held in the City Council  

  Chambers in the City Hall at 7:00 p.m., unless otherwise specified by the 

  Chairman.  

 

 



Section 2.   The order of business at a public hearing shall be as indicated in the  

  public notice thereof.   

 

Section 3.  The Chairman of the Commission or a majority of the Planning Commission 

  may alter the order of business at the hearing.  

 

Section 4.  The rules of procedure governing hearings shall be: 

 

 (a) The number of hearings will not exceed two (2) petitions per agenda unless 

  related petitions are presented and heard together at which time there may  

  be four (4) petitions per agenda.   

 

 (b) The Chairman of the Planning Commission may grant an exception to the  

  number of hearings per agenda when necessary under special conditions.  

 

 (a) The petitioner, or representative of the petitioner, shall be granted fifteen 

  (15) minutes per hearing to explain the petition.  

 

 (b) Speakers in favor of or opposed to a petition shall be granted ten (10) 

  minutes when representing a group or organization.   

 

 (c) Speakers in favor of or opposed to a petition shall be granted five (5)  

  minutes when not representing a group or organization.   

 

 (d) The Chairman of the Planning Commission may grant an exception to the  

  time limit granted to the petitioner, representative and speakers in favor/ 

  opposition when necessary under special conditions or unusual  

  circumstances.  

 

 

ARTICLES VI – COMMITTEES 

 

Section 1.  At the Meeting following his or her election, the Chairman of the Planning  

  Commission shall appoint for a term of one (1) year, three (3) or more 

  members of the Commission to each of the following standing committees 

  and shall designate the Chairman of each: 

 

 (a) Comprehensive Planning Committee:  This Committee shall have primary 

responsibility for advising and directing the Department of Planning staff on 

intermediate and long-range planning. The Comprehensive Planning Committee 

shall, by resolution, propose changes to the Comprehensive Plan to the Planning 

Commission. 

 

 (b) Ordinance Review Committee:  This committee shall have primary  

  responsibility for reviewing and advising and directing the Department 

of Planning staff on Ordinances affecting the planning process.  The Ordinance 

Review Committee shall, by resolution, propose topics for new or amended 

ordinances regarding the planning process to the Planning Commission. 

 

 (c) Site Plan/Landscape Committee:   This committee shall have primary  

responsibility for review and advising the Planning Commission Department of 

Planning staff  on site plans and landscaping and related matters.   



 

Section 2.  The Chairman of the Planning Commission with the approval of the  

  Commission may appoint special committees.   

 

Section 3.  A committee’s vacancy shall be filled by the Chairman of the Planning 

  Commission.  

 

Section 4.  The Chairman of the Planning Commission may, with the approval of the  

  Planning Commission, appoint as an advisory member of a committee a  

  person who is not a member of the Planning Commission or of the   

  Department of Planning Staff.  

  

Section 5.  A committee shall meet at a time and place set by the Chairman of the  

  Committee.  

 

 

ARTICLE VII – DIRECTOR OF PLANNING 

 

Section 1.  The Director of Planning shall provider staff assistance to the Planning 

  Commission and shall perform those duties required by law or delegated 

   by the Planning Commission or an officer thereof.  

 

Section 2.  The Director of Planning shall appoint as necessary a member of the  

   Department of Planning staff to meet with, work for and advise any  

   designated Committee of the Commission.  

 

Section 3.  The Director of Planning and/or City Attorney shall provide parliamentary 

   assistance on the conduct  business as requested by the Chairman of the  

   Commission.   

 

 

ARTICLE VIII – AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS 

 

Section 1.  These By-laws may be amended by an affirmative vote of not less than  

   six (6) members of the Planning Commission.  

 


